
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

Meeting Notice: 

The TARC Board of Directors holds a monthly meeting of the Finance subcommittee. The next 
meeting will be held at: 

 
TARC’s Headquarters, Board Room 
1000 W. Broadway, Louisville, KY  40203  
 
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.  

This meeting may also be held via teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826.  

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with a disability may request a reasonable 
accommodation for assistance with the meeting or meeting materials. Please contact Stephanie 
Isaacs at 502.561.5103. Requests made as early as possible will allow time to arrange 
accommodation.  



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Agenda – February 21, 2024 

 
I. Quorum Call/Call to Order     Steve Miller            10:00  

 
a. Approval of January Meeting Minutes in packet      10:05 – 10:10  

 
 

II. Schmidt Presentation       Alex Posorske  10:10 – 10:20 
 
 

III. TransPro Presentation       Rob Stephens  10:20 –10:30 
 

 
IV. Broadway All the Way Update      Rob Stephens  10:30 -10:35 

 
 

V. Staff Reports and Presentation 
 
A. Financial Statements for December 2023   Tonya Carter  10:35 – 10:55 
B. Budget Timeline  

 
VI. Action Items and Presentations for Board Meeting     10:55– 11:15 

 
A. Resolution 2024 -06 Trapeze Maintenance  Joe Triplett  

 
B. Resolution 2024-07 Purchase of Diesel Fuel   Maria Harris  

 
C. Resolution 2024-08 Cooling Components   Maria Harris  

 
D. Review overall Procurement calendar for year  Maria Harris  

 
 

VII. Adjournment              11:15 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

January 17, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes  

The Finance Committee of Transit Authority of River City (TARC) met on Wednesday, January 17, 2024 at 
10:00 a.m. in person at TARC’s headquarters, 1000 West Broadway in the Board Room and virtually via 
teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826. 

Members in Person     Members Virtual                                
Steve Miller      Ted Smith                  

Call to Order 
Steve Miller called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m.  
Approved the November Finance Committee Meeting Minutes.  

Staff Reports and Presentation 

Tonya Carter presented Financial Statements for November 2023. Refer to PowerPoint Presentation included 
in the packet 2024-2025 Budget Time Line.  

Action Items 
 

Chris Ward presented Resolution 2023-11 Amendment for Options On Board Intelligent Transportation 
Systems.   Rick Spangler with Avail Technologies participated virtually for this portion of the meeting.  

Chris Ward presented all three resolutions at once because they represent the components of a single 
installation of ITS equipment, which includes the Motorola radio equipment and the connector between our 
existing Trapeze system and the new Avail technology. 

• TARC has contracted with Avail Technologies to implement a new on-board intelligent transportation 
system to provide and assist TARC with its computer-aided dispatch, automatic vehicle locator and 
communications.  

• A competitive solicitation, request for proposal 20221777 was issued on December 2, 2022.  
• The full procurement process is described in Resolution 2023-11. The TARC Board of Directors 

authorized the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Avail Technologies with an initial term 
of five (5) years with an option of five (5) additional one-year terms.  

• TARC staff have since evaluated and recommended select options from the Avail Technologies proposal, 
including 5G routers and on-board video displays, and installation of separately procured two-way radios, 
and supplementary equipment.  

• In addition to these options, TARC will seek to contract separately with Motorola to update its similarly 
obsolete on-board radio system. The radio system installation will be coordinated through Avail 
Technologies and integrated as part of the ITS implementation. 

• The base cost has since been lowered to $3,808,897 in recognition of a reduction in TARC’s active fixed 
route fleet size since the original solicitation. 

• This resolution is seeking approval for the Interim Executive Director to amend the existing five (5) year 
agreement with an option of five (5) one-year terms with Avail Technologies, Inc. to include selected 
options at an additional cost of $3,740,326 plus a 4% contingency for an overall revised not to exceed 
amount of $7,850,000. 

 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
 
 
Chris Ward presented Resolution 2024 – 1 Radio System Replacement (RFP20231831). 

In coordination with the active On-Board Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) project (RFP 20221777), the 
Transit Authority of River City (TARC) has an opportunity to replace its aging and obsolete two-way radio 
system and integrate new Motorola radio equipment with the Avail ITS as part of a combined installation 
process. 

• TARC seeks to replace its obsolete, end-of-life two-way radio infrastructure.  
• TARC will coordinate this replacement with the installation of the Avail ITS system, minimizing disruption 

to operations and facilitating full integration.  
• TARC is a participant in the MetroSafe communications system that serves the Louisville urban area and 

uses Motorola radio equipment.  
• TARC staff have determined that the best procurement approach is through use of a piggyback contract 

option through the Commonwealth of Kentucky for Public Safety Communications Products.  
• Motorola Solutions has provided a fixed price proposal of $1,360,750.45 based on the terms of the 

contract with the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  
• TARC has funds programmed for this use in a Surface Transportation Program Grant.  
• This resolution is seeking approval for the Interim Executive Director to enter into an agreement with 

Motorola Solutions with a term of seven (7) years for a new radio system at a not-to-exceed amount of 
$1,360,750.45. 

Chris Ward presented Resolution 2024-02 Trapeze Standard Data Exchange (RFP 20241865). 
 

• On June 27, 2023, the Board approved Resolution 2023-11 authorizing the Executive Director to enter 
into an agreement with Avail Technologies to replace TARC’s end-of-life on-board intelligent 
transportation system through RFP 20221777.  

• TARC’s ITS project will integrate the Avail Technologies system with on-board equipment, and fixed route 
scheduling data will flow through the Avail system to that equipment. 

• TARC is currently replacing its end-of-life on-board intelligent transportation system and requires data to 
be exported from Trapeze planning software to the new Avail Technologies system. 

• The Trapeze Software Group, Inc. has provided TARC a fixed price proposal for the provision of the 
Trapeze Standard Data Exchange (TSDE) solution.  

• The TSDE scheduling export will support new ITS functionality that will provide significant improvements 
to TARC operations and to TARC customers’ on-board and trip planning experience. 

• The proprietary nature of the TSDE solution requires the use of a sole-source procurement 
(RFP20241865). 

• TARC has funds programmed and available for this use through a fiscal year 2019 5339 formula grant. 
• This resolution is seeking approval for Interim Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Trapeze 

Software Group, Inc. for a term of one (1) year for deployment, licensing, and maintenance of the Trapeze 
Standard Data Exchange (“TSDE”) solution for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,651. 

 
Ted Smith asked to confirm that the dollars used have been accruing for this Capital purchase. “Is that  

correct? And are there additional costs on the operating budget moving forward?”   
 
Chris Ward stated that is correct and he added that the average annual support for each of these four years  

associated with the equipment is approximately $1.2 million total or $300,000 per year.  That's going to 
be less than we're paying right now for support. 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Clarification: funds for the ITS system have been programmed for this use in several years of 5307 & 
5339 formula funds grants. 

Discussion continued regarding the 5G and Telecommunications.  
 
Ted Smith asked, “How does this package work its way across the different sort of folks who are  

either users of it or somehow have to be involved with it?” 
 
Chris Ward answered, “There is an entire training component provided by Avail Technologies. There is a  

trainer, and she has been collaborating with our training department directly.”  
 
Steve Miller added to the discussion regarding the level of rider data that will be available once everything is in  

place on the busses.   

Rick Spangler with Avail Technologies shared the installation time line.  

• A detailed cutover plan is being put together because we want to time everything so that we can do this 
in such a manner that it's not disruptive to the ridership. 

• It's not disruptive to the drivers because everyone's trained ahead of time so that when we do install, 
both the bus and driver are ready to go.  

• It's going to be a lot of prep work to ensure we're very successful and everyone who is receiving this 
technology afterwards will be very successful.  

Avail has been invited to the TARC Board Meeting on January 24, 2024. 
 
Discussion continued in regards to other components that may be added in the future.  
 
Chris Ward confirmed the Motorola radios will be tied into the Metro Safe system.  
 
These resolutions moved to the Board Meeting.  

      Maria Harris presented Resolution 2024-03 Facility Wide Building Maintenance, Repair and other  
General Construction On-Demand Services with IDIQ.     

• TARC conducted a formal competitive solicitation.  
• TARC received two responses, but only one was responsive.  
• TARC received a single-bid proposal from City Wide Facility Solutions, which was deemed responsive. 

Based on the pricing analysis, and it was determined that hourly rates were fair and reasonable. 
• This resolution is seeking approval for the Interim Executive Director to enter into an agreement with 

City Wide Facility Solutions for the initial term of two (2) years and three (3) one-year optional terms for 
a total not-to-exceed amount of $500,000.00. 

Ted Smith asked, “How will we exercise control over these expenses?”.  
 
Maria Harris answered “With the approval process depending on our various levels of procurement  

thresholds.”  
 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Ted Smith requested the approval process to be included in a slide to share at the Board 
Meeting so everyone  

will be aware of the process in place.   
 
The Resolution move on to the Board.   
 
Joe Triplett presented Resolution 2023-04 Amendment for Renewal of Vontas ITS Support  

and Maintenance.  

• TARC has operated a Vontas Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) on its fixed-route fleet since 2010. 
• In August 2023, TARC contracted to replace the Vontas ITS system with a new system from Avail 

Technologies. 
• The new Avail Technologies system is anticipated to be fully implemented in early 2025. 
• The software support and maintenance agreement with Vontas requires extension to address the period 

from October 1, 2023 through March 31, 2025 to ensure continuity of ITS support. 
• TARC seeks on-board system technologies support and maintenance agreements to provide and assist 

TARC with its on-going needs.  
• TARC received price quotes from Vontas for renewal purposes, which were deemed fair and reasonable.  
• This resolution is seeking approval for the Interim Executive Director to enter into an agreement to extend 

the software support and maintenance agreement with Vontas for an additional eighteen (18) months 
based upon the proposed cost for a not-to-exceed amount of $854,129.12.  

 

The Resolution move on to the Board.   
 

Proposed Agenda / Procurements:                                               

• Rob Stephens presented an update regarding the Digital Route Display Repair. A company has been 
found to repair the current digital route displays.  Start date is in February.  The cost is under the, 
$100,000.00 threshold for Board Approval. We had some very interested stakeholders that want to see 
those operational, and so we think we found the right vendor to move this project forward.  

 
• Joe Triplett presented an update regarding the Trapeze renewals.  

 
• Maria Harris presented an update regarding the fuel rebidding process due to a break in the contract 

with the current supplier.   
 

Steve Miller adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m.  

ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF February, 2024 

 

_______________________________ 

Steve Miller, Chair of the Finance Committee 
 
 



TARC 2025
NETWORK REDESIGN

KICKOFF PRESENTATION TO FINANCE COMMITTEE
FEBRUARY 21, 2024

1



Leads: Alex Posorske & Aida Copic

2

WHO IS LEADING THIS STUDY?



3

NETWORK DESIGN LEAD

ABOUT US

• 17 people
• 3 offices
• Exclusively focused on transit 

service design and related issues.

Houston Dublin Dallas Indianapolis Madison Miami



4

SUCCESSFUL NETWORKS ACROSS THE WORLD



• Federal Covid operational support funding is exhausted
• Costs have increased significantly
• Multiple routes and services were cut back during Covid
• Post-Covid travel patterns have changed: how should TARC respond?
• Our Goal:

• Deliver two proposals for an updated TARC transit network
• that can better meet the community’s goals and priorities
• within the reality of the funding that TARC can expect over the next 5-10 years.

TARC FACES A RANGE OF CHALLENGES

TARC 2025 NETWORK REDESIGN

5



• TARC Staff applied for two Federal Transit Administration grants:
• Post-Covid Route Restoration

• Review routes and services cut during Covid (2019-2022)
• Assess trip patterns post-Covid
• Recommendation for service restoration that meets today’s needs

• Mobility Study for Areas of Persistent Poverty
• Review existing connectivity with focus on the areas of persistent poverty
• Identify barriers and issues limiting transit access and connectivity within, and to and from, the areas 

of persistent poverty
• Recommend improvements to mobility and connectivity from the areas of persistent poverty to large 

employment centers, education, and other major destination points in the region.
• TARC 2025 will cover these topics and develop a plan for the short and long-term to 

fit within expected resources.

FEDERALLY FUNDED STUDY

TARC 2025 STUDY FUNDING

6



THE PROJECT IS A CONVERSATION

TARC 2025 STUDY PROCESS

7

Analyze Service, 
Demand, Needs,

Conceptual Networks

Draft Network 
Development

Network Refinement

Do we have the 
network right?

Technical Work Reports Community Discussion

Draft 
Plan

What should our 
priorities be? Which 

Concept do you Prefer?

Choices 
Report

Final
Plan Explain the Plan

• The process builds on 
the interaction 
between the technical 
work and community 
conversations.



The ridership-coverage tradeoff

WHAT IS TRANSIT TRYING TO DO?



• Imagine you had 18 
buses to serve this 
fictional town.

• Dots are the locations of 
residents and jobs.

DIFFERENT GOALS, DIFFERENT SERVICE



• If your only goal were 
ridership, you would focus 
on service that generates 
the most ridership for the 
least cost.

• That means high 
frequency in places that 
are dense, walkable, and 
linear, but no service 
elsewhere.

RIDERSHIP GOAL

The Ridership Goal

Useful service in places where many 
people and nearby, and can compete 
for as many trips as possible.



• If your only goal were Coverage, you 
would spread service out.

• So you’d have a lot of routes…
• which means you couldn’t afford to 

run them very frequently…
• which makes them not very useful…
• which means not many people ride.
• Spreading it out = spreading it thin.

COVERAGE GOAL

The Coverage Goal

Some service near everyone who needs it.



Ridership Goal

• “Think like a business.”  
• Lowest subsidy per passenger.
• Supports dense and walkable 

development.
• Max. emissions reduction.
• Maximum reduction of vehicle 

miles traveled.

Coverage Goal

• “Think like a public service.”
• “Access for all”
• Lifeline access for every

home and job.
• Service to every member city 

or electoral district.

Both goals are important, 
… but they lead opposite directions!



13

TO ANSWER VALUE QUESTIONS AND BUILD CONFIDENCE

ENGAGING EXTERNALLY AND INTERNALLY

• Intense External Engagement
• 3 Rounds
• Stakeholder Workshops
• Public Meetings
• Pop-Up Events
• Online and In-Person Surveying

• Inreach
• Thoughtful Internal Engagement
• Focus Groups with Operators and 

Supervisors
• Coordination across Departments
• Collaborative Design Workshop



TARC 2025 STUDY PROCESS

14

Analyze Service, 
Demand, Needs
Market Surveys

Draft Network 
Development

Network Refinement

Do we have the 
network right?

Technical Work Reports Community Discussion

Draft 
Plan

What should our 
priorities be? Which 

Concept do you Prefer?

Choices 
Report

Final
Plan Explain the Plan

Develop
Conceptual Networks

February –
April 2024

May –
July 2024

August –
September 2024

October –
November 
2024

December 2024 
– January 2025

February –
March 2025

April 2025

Board Decision 
Point

Board Decision 
Point



15

Questions or Discussion

THANK YOU!





Public 

Engagement

• Dozens of community workshops 
and meetings

• Hundreds of community 
conversations on the street

• Targeted stakeholder input
• Thousands of online interactions



Study Area



Safety Analysis (2014-2018)















































RAISE 2022 Planning Grant
• $6.25 million project ($5 million award)
• 3 year timeline

Planning Component 1: Creating A Unified Vision for Premium 
Transit 
• Project management
• Master plan validation
• Vision, policy and plans for nodes and TOD
• Transit facilities
• Future transit connections
• Transit technology
• Disadvantaged workforce plan

Planning Component 2: Shovel Ready Plans to Implement
• Preliminary Plans
• Quick Build Implementation Plans
• Final Design

Planning Component 3:  Strategic Transit Enhancements along 
Baxter Avenue and Bardstown Road 



 

www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants  52 
 

BROADWAY ALL THE WAY 

RAISE AWARD AMOUNT: $5,000,000  

APPLICANT: CITY OF LOUISVILLE 

STATE: KENTUCKY  

URBAN 

Project Description: This planning project will advance three specific Complete Streets projects: The first component 
will create a unified vision for premium transit on Route 23, the corridor’s main line, through public engagement; 
identification of locations for transfers, BRT connections, and ITS needs; and a disadvantaged workforce plan. The 
second component will create the shovel-ready plans for approximately 5.5 miles of Complete Street improvements 
on Broadway. The third component will complete preliminary and final design for bus station and bus rapid transit 
infrastructure on Baxter Avenue and Bardstown Road. 

Project Benefits: This project impacts all modes of transportation along an approximately 10-mile stretch of three 
major roads that includes 30% of the bus routes in the city to help address safety issues and access to employment 
and critical services. This project particularly focuses on access to medical services and educational facilities for 
historically disadvantaged communities. It also supports economic competitiveness by including a disadvantaged 
workforce plan, redeveloping vacant land, brownfields, and parking lots into transit hubs, and providing travel time 
savings for commuters. 



Peer Analysis Summary

DRAFT
Prepared by

 TransPro Consulting
February 21, 2024



TARC is not alone…

…many U.S. transit systems are facing fiscal challenges 2



State Funding

46th 
Kentucky ranks 
46th out of 50 

states and D.C. 
in transit 
funding

Source: AASHTO 2023 Survey of State Funding for Public Transportation (FY2021) 8



State Funding Per Capita

2.98x $6.61 

$2.22 

Indiana Kentucky

State Transit Funding Per Capita

Indiana gives 2.98 
times more transit 
funding per capita 

than Kentucky.

9Sources: INDOT, KPTA, and KYTC



Increased Funding

$7.1m
If Kentucky matched 
Indiana’s per capita 

transit funding, TARC 
would receive $7.1m 

per year. 

IN Funding per Capita ∗ Pop. of KY ∗ TARC % of Veh. Rev. Miles

$6.61 ∗ 4,509,000 ∗ 23.89%

Sources: INDOT and National Transit Database (2022). 10



General Transit Funding Source Categories

Local General Fund
Many systems receive general fund 
appropriation via local government, 

often property tax.

Federal Funding
Most agencies receive federal 

formula funds and 
discretionary grants. Primarily 

for capital projects.

State Funding
Unique to each state, sources 

vary. 

Local Option Authority
Directly or indirectly dedicated 
revenues via local options or 

referendum.

11



Peer Agency – Local Funding Type
Agency

Direct Tax 
Type

Direct Tax 
Amount

Indirect Tax 
Type

Indirect Tax 
Amount

General Fund Total Amount

LexTran - Lexington Property $21,029,258 - - $180,075 $21,209,333 

MATA - Memphis - - - - $ 21,809,072 $21,809,072 

BJCTA - Birmingham - - Property and Other $12,268,055 $13,082,039 $25,350,094 

TARTA - Toledo Sales and Property $39,593,062 - - - $39,593,062 

Go Metro - Cincinnati - - Sales $45,376,932 - $45,376,932 

KCATA - Kansas City - - Sales $41,267,331 $6,780,258 $48,047,589 

TARC - - Income $50,865,563 $1,705,863 $52,571,426 

WeGo - Nashville - - - - $55,429,599 $55,429,599 

JTA - Jacksonville - - Sales and Fuel $90,477,546 $1,413,788 $91,891,334 

IndyGo - Indianapolis - - Income and Property $109,256,902 $264,996 $109,521,898 

SacRT - Sacramento - - Sales and Property $144,055,485 - $144,055,485 

COTA - Columbus Sales $171,039,332 - - $952,420 $171,991,752 

Source: National Transit Database (2022). Blanks are “N/A.” 12



62%

78%

57%

23%
30%

36%

48% 48% 48%
58%

29%

53%

25%
6%

2%

1%

12%

6%

4%

1%

8%

1%

2%

7% 14%
5%

5%

56%
29%

23%

13%
33%

48%

55%

55%
36%

29%
41%

30%

3%
12% 12% 7%

2% 3%
12%

2%
7% 8% 5% 6%

MATA
Memphis

WeGo
Nashville

Lextran
Lexington

COTA
Columbus

TARTA
Toledo

BJCTA
Birmingham

Go Metro
Cincinnati

KCATA
Kansas City

TARC SacRT
Sacramento

IndyGo
Indianapolis

JTA
Jacksonville

2022 Funding (Operating and Capital)

Taxes Levied (Direct Authority) Local (Indirect Tax) Local (General Fund) State Federal Directly Generated

Peer Agency – Funding Comparison

Above: Consider Direct Revenue as the sum of Local (General Fund) + State + 
Federal funding. TARC (44%) is third from the bottom in the percent of direct 
revenue, above just SacRT (43%) and JTA (36%).

$105m$75m $104m $34m $219m $69m $53m $150m $113m $298m $225m $155m

13



Peer Agency – Funding Comparison

Above: 2019 funding is provided to see pre-COVID relief funding. Federal and Directly 
Generated funding is substantially lower across the board. TARC is one of just 4 agencies 
who did not increase funding from 2019 to 2022 ($105 million). 14

63% 60%

44%

24%

48%
53% 52% 48%

58% 57%
48%

63%

36%

6% 5%

7%
13%

6% 2%

1%
4%

2%
14%

6%

9%

27%
17%

16%

11%
33%

33%

26%

30% 30%
19%

30% 18%

12% 14% 18%
29%

22%

7%

23%

10% 11%
19%

6% 10%

MATA
Memphis

WeGo
Nashville

Lextran
Lexington

COTA
Columbus

TARTA
Toledo

BJCTA
Birmingham

Go Metro
Cincinnati

KCATA
Kansas City

TARC SacRT
Sacramento

IndyGo
Indianapolis

JTA
Jacksonville

2019 Funding (Operating and Capital)

Taxes Levied (Direct Authority) Local (Indirect Tax) Local (General Fund) State Federal Directly Generated

$105m$65m $143m $28m $227m $29m $37m $140m $130m $200m $180m $138m



Peer Agency – FY 2024 Budget Revenue
Agency Tax Local State Federal

Directly 
Generated

Non-
Transportation

Total Amount

LexTran - Lexington $22,418,240 - $1,216,025 $8,761,413 $1,633,723 $2,511,104 $36,540,505

MATA - Memphis - $36,550,000 $7,656,400 $16,718,700 $3,146,900 $356,400 $64,428,400

TARTA - Toledo $39,555,000 - $1,879,046 $21,987,818 $1,850,000 $370,000 $65,641,864

TARC $69,641,385 - $1,776,642 $36,151,990 $8,005,796 $963,300 $116,539,113

WeGo - Nashville - $74,690,900 $5,314,300 $28,558,500 $10,701,230 $1,363,240 $120,628,170

JTA - Jacksonville $107,200,000 - $15,400,000 $23,100,000 $9,900,000 - $155,600,000

Go Metro -
Cincinnati

$124,201,000 - - $10,933,000 $18,857,000 $8,508,000 $162,499,000

IndyGo -
Indianapolis

$39,900,000 $41,000,000 $11,400,000 $147,200,000 $8,100,000 $2,000,000 $249,600,000

SacRT - Sacramento $164,457,922 - $24,216,050 $125,992,272 $18,099,730 $4,365,000 $337,130,974

Sources: Agency websites. Note, agencies categorize differently, so this chart 
represents a faithful approximation of streamlined categories.

15



34%
41%

46%
51% 52% 52% 53% 55% 57% 58% 59% 61%

17%

16%
17%

16%
22%

17% 17%
20%

23%
16% 17% 17%

7%
5%

8%
7%

3%
4% 6%

4%
2%

7% 2%
4%42% 37%

29% 25% 23% 27% 25% 21% 18% 19% 22% 18%

BJCTA JTA COTA KCATA MATA IndyGo SacRT Go Metro TARTA WeGo TARC Lextran

Operating Expenses (% of Total)

Vehicle Operations Vehicle Maintenance Facility Maintenance General Administration

Peer Agency – Operating Expenses

Above: TARC almost leads the cohort in Vehicle Operations spending. In peers, this tends 
to connect to lower General Administration spending, but this is not the case with TARC. 
Due to high costs in both areas, TARC is deferring Maintenance, an unsustainable option.16



23%

16%

28%

14%

19%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Operators Wages & Paid
Absences

Other Salaries Wages & Paid
Absences

Fringe Benefits Purchased Transportation Other

Operating Expense by Type

Lextran TARTA BJCTA MATA WeGo TARC KCATA IndyGo JTA Go Metro COTA SacRT

Peer Agency – Operating Expenses by Type

Above: TARC is a high outlier in Fringe Benefits and Purchased Transportation (primarily 
rising paratransit costs). These expense categories are putting a heavy burden on the 
agency. 17



Peer Agency – Service and Cost

6.8 7.3 8.0 8.5 8.6
9.6 10.1 10.2 10.4

11.3 11.9

18.7

TARC TARTA MATA JTA IndyGo BJCTA We Go COTA Lextran SacRT Go
Metro

KCATA

Unlinked Passenger Trips per Vehicle Revenue Hour

$92.93 
$113.52 $114.24 $122.75 

$141.99 
$154.14 $160.29 $161.55 

$175.16 $175.59 $184.66 

$215.64 

Lextran TARC We Go TARTA COTA Go
Metro

MATA IndyGo KCATA JTA BJCTA SacRT

Operating Expenses per Vehicle Revenue Hour

Top Left: TARC’s expenses per trip is close to its peer average, but 
higher than peers like Go Metro, COTA, and WeGo, which are most 
similar in service area and population.

Top Right: TARC is nearly leading the cohort in operating cost per 
revenue hour.

Bottom Right: TARC provides the fewest trips per revenue hour. 
Suboptimal span (hours of operation) along with inefficient, 
suburban service are likely contributing to low trips per hour.

18

$8.90 $9.35 
$11.35 

$12.94 
$13.94 

$16.61 $16.85 
$18.72 $19.04 $19.19 $20.13 $20.76 

Lextran KCATA WeGo Go
Metro

COTA TARC TARTA IndyGo SacRT BJCTA MATA JTA

Operating Expenses per Unlinked Passenger Trip



Peer Strategies – TARTA, Toledo
• Facing insolvency leading up to early 2020s

• Built a local coalition of business and community to support investment

• Worked arm-in-arm with the ATU 

• Cut Sunday and all event service to save expenses and show seriousness

• Passed a tax referendum in 2021 

• Repealed existing property tax and replaced with a 0.5% sales tax for 10 
years

• Increased local funding from $14m to $32m

• After the vote, they have yet to receive negative feedback about the tax 

19



Peer Strategies – WeGo, Nashville 

• Solidly funded through local general fund appropriation

• Supportive Mayor with a vision for increased investment in transit to 
advance growth and development of Nashville

• Mayor is anticipated to put a ballot initiative forward to expand and 
enhance transit investment in coming election cycle

20



Peer Strategies – IndyGo, Indianapolis 

• Chronically underinvested system, facing annual fiscal crisis
• 2012 Mayor and Business Leaders put forward bold vision for transit called 

IndyConnect
• 2014 Indiana General Assembly creates local option funding mechanism 

with referendum language
• 2016 Referendum passes with 63% of the vote 
• 0.25% income tax ; 70% increase in service
• 2018 First BRT opens
• 2024 Anticipated opening of 2nd BRT line
• 2027 Anticipated opening of 3rd BRT
• Fiscally solvent 

21



Peer Strategies – Go Metro, Cincinnati 

• Faced a 10-year projected deficit of $160.5 million

• 2020 Referendum passes with 50.4% of the vote

• Repealed existing 0.3% City of Cincinnati income tax

• Replaced with a permanent 0.8% sales tax

• 2024 Budget anticipates $124.2 million revenue from tax

22



Passing a Tax Vote: Bold Vision

85%
85% of local tax votes to 
fund public transit were 

approved between 
2017-2022*. 

Source: https://www.metro-magazine.com/10210005/transit-ballot-measures-continue-succesful-trend 23



Financial Scenarios

Placeholder slide for Financial Operations 
Scenarios. Will complete after the meeting with 

the mayor and any key decisions are made. 

24



Key Question

What is the vision for 
transportation in Louisville?

25



Key Question

What is the state and city willing to 
do to keep an $88m business that 

employs 300+ people?

26



Key Question

Do we want a world-class 
transit system?

27



                                      
    TARC Board of Directors 
    Financial Summary - Recap       
    December 2023, Fiscal Year 2024 
         
    

 
 
 
Current month Operating revenues are over budget $206,886 (pg. 2, line 9) mainly due to 
Special fares and insurance recoveries. Current month Operating expenses are under budget 
$119,031(pg. 2, line 41) mainly due to all expenses being under budget except Labor, Fringes 
and services. Capital expenses are under by $99,996 (pg. 2, line 48) mainly due to 
Development Cost & Loss on Disposal being under budget. 
 
Year-to-date Operating revenues are over $615,692 (pg. 2, Line 9) mainly due to passenger 
fares and insurance recoveries. Year to date expenses are under $4,267,467 (pg. 2, line 41) 
due to all expenses being under budget except Labor and Casualty & liability. Coach 
Operator labor is the main driver for labor being over and this could be timing due to timing 
of vacation projections. Year-to-date Capital expenses are over budget $82,593 (pg. 2, line 
48) mainly due to timing of capital projects and projecting out depreciation for the current 
year. 
   
Over all we are under budget projections for expenses year-to-date and the MTTF receipts 
are preforming over projections so we are on a good road to be under budget for the year. 

 



page  2Statement of Revenue - Expenses - with Capital Contributions

December 2023, Fiscal Year 2024

FY24 Over budget Over budget Percentage
Description Total Budget Actual Budget (Under budget) Actual Budget (Under budget) Remaining

Revenues

1 Passenger Fares 4,859,906 403,439 396,750 6,689 2,658,383 2,424,356 234,027 45.30%
2 Paratransit Fares 960,000 72,519 80,000 (7,481) 480,232 480,000 232 49.98%
3 Special Fare Revenues (UofL, UPS and etc) 1,535,890 202,306 150,000 52,306 841,402 815,890 25,512 45.22%
4 Comp Specials 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
5 Advertising Revenue 650,000 54,167 54,167 0 325,000 325,002 (2) 50.00%
6 Other Agency Revenues 363,300 36,152 30,275 5,877 271,254 181,650 89,604 25.34%
7 Total Recoveries-Insurance 50,000 153,662 4,167 149,495 291,321 25,002 266,319 -482.64%
8 0
9 Operating Revenues 8,419,096 922,245 715,359 206,886 4,867,592 4,251,900 615,692 42.18%

10
11 MTTF Contributions- Federated 62,616,384 5,005,884 5,005,884 0 30,595,093 30,595,093 0 51.14%
12 Local Government Funds - MTTF 1,261,975 0 147,265 (147,265) 164,800 630,990 (466,190) 86.94%
13 Federal Reimbursement Funds - FTA 36,651,990 2,573,186 2,797,392 (224,206) 13,670,122 18,152,550 (4,482,428) 62.70%
14 State Government Funds 1,276,642 353,933 308,379 45,554 698,342 632,883 65,459 45.30%
15
16 Total Non-Operating Revenues 101,806,991 7,933,003 8,258,920 (325,917) 45,128,357 50,011,516 (4,883,159) 55.67%
17
18 Total Revenues Before Cap Contributions 110,226,087 8,855,248 8,974,279 (119,031) 49,995,949 54,263,416 (4,267,467) 54.64%
19
20 Local Government Funds - MTTF, Cap 6,384,870 15,110 274,755 (259,645) 189,393 2,849,965 (2,660,572) 97.03%
21 Federal Reimbursement Funds - FTA, Cap 25,816,643 589,716 1,099,018 (509,302) 7,997,187 11,399,852 (3,402,665) 69.02%
22 State Goverenment Funds, Cap 0 117,045 0 117,045 1,841,537 0 1,841,537 0.00%
23 Other Agencies Revenue, Cap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
24
25 Total Capital Contributions 32,201,513 721,871 1,373,773 (651,902) 10,028,116 14,249,817 (4,221,701) 68.86%
26
27 Total Revenues 142,427,600 9,577,119 10,348,052 (770,933) 60,024,064 68,513,233 (8,489,169) 57.86%
28
29
30 Expenses
31
32 Labor 33,240,842 2,824,055 2,557,692 266,363 16,812,715 16,380,985 431,730 49.42%
33 Fringes & Benefits 30,712,129 3,047,825 2,741,798 306,027 14,976,871 15,552,825 (575,954) 51.23%
34 Services 7,737,546 719,028 638,947 80,081 2,941,308 3,892,620 (951,312) 61.99%
35 Materials 9,035,040 650,050 753,264 (103,214) 3,937,890 4,464,586 (526,696) 56.42%
36 Utilities 1,205,000 81,412 100,417 (19,005) 477,934 602,502 (124,568) 60.34%
37 Casualty & Liability 3,827,100 91,907 318,926 (227,019) 2,014,262 1,913,556 100,706 47.37%
38 Purchased Transportation 23,507,410 1,394,662 1,782,277 (387,615) 8,655,547 10,990,594 (2,335,047) 63.18%
39 Interest Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
40 Other Expenses 961,020 46,308 80,958 (34,650) 179,422 465,748 (286,326) 81.33%
41 Operating Expenses 110,226,087 8,855,248 8,974,279 (119,031) 49,995,949 54,263,416 (4,267,467) 54.64%
42
43
44
45 Development Cost & Loss on Disposal 2,083,268 4,851 87,292 (82,441) 54,485 277,965 (223,480) 97.38%
46 Depreciation Expenses 12,579,047 1,014,503 1,032,058 (17,555) 6,126,252 5,820,179 306,073 51.30%
47 Loss on Disposal of Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
48 Total Capital Expenses 14,662,315 1,019,354 1,119,350 (99,996) 6,180,737 6,098,144 82,593 57.85%
49
50 Total  Expenses 124,888,402 9,874,602 10,093,629 (219,027) 56,176,686 60,361,560 (4,184,874) 55.02%
51
52
53 Revenue / Expense Difference Before Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
54
55 Revenue / Expense Difference After Capital 17,539,198 (297,483) 254,423 (551,906) 3,847,378 8,151,673 (4,304,295) 78.06%

Fiscal Year-to-dateCurrent Month



page 3

Total Labor

December 2023, Fiscal Year 2024

FY24 Over budget Over budget Percentage
Description Total Budget Actual Budget (Under budget) Actual Budget (Under budget) Remaining

1 Direct Labor 33,240,842 2,824,055 2,557,692 266,363 16,812,715 16,380,985 431,730 49.42%
2 Sick Leave 1,761,580 129,541 114,132 15,409 784,496 1,020,838 (236,342) 55.47%
3 Holiday 1,428,538 286,362 283,633 2,729 664,742 704,755 (40,013) 53.47%
4 Vacation 2,236,350 361,645 185,800 175,845 1,290,738 1,135,758 154,980 42.28%
5 Other Paid Absences 238,442 18,866 62,229 (43,363) 107,507 141,392 (33,885) 54.91%
6
7 Total 38,905,752 3,620,469 3,203,486 416,983 19,660,198 19,383,728 276,470 49.47%
8
9 Difference compared to Budget 416,983 276,470

FY24 Over budget Over budget Percentage
Description Total Budget Actual Budget (Under budget) Actual Budget (Under budget) Remaining

10 FICA 2,976,282 271,167 245,065 26,102 1,474,542 1,482,848 (8,306) 50.46%
11 Pension 9,323,000 895,920 828,492 67,428 4,393,059 4,766,552 (373,493) 52.88%
12 Hospital Medical & Surgical 9,228,084 677,558 744,200 (66,642) 4,134,869 4,465,200 (330,331) 55.19%
13 Vision Care Insurance 85,741 893 7,153 (6,260) 25,220 42,918 (17,698) 70.59%
14 Dental Plans 345,120 16,808 28,760 (11,952) 130,848 172,560 (41,712) 62.09%
15 Life Insurance 46,536 3,528 3,878 (350) 21,237 23,268 (2,031) 54.36%
16 Disability Insurance 154,956 12,074 12,913 (839) 72,679 77,478 (4,799) 53.10%
17 Kentucky Unemployment 40,000 12,223 0 12,223 12,223 20,000 (7,777) 69.44%
18 Worker's Compensation 2,500,000 345,967 208,334 137,633 1,598,932 1,250,004 348,928 36.04%
19 Uniform  & Work Clothing Allowance 345,000 14,748 17,000 (2,252) 263,541 248,000 15,541 23.61%
20 Other Fringes 2,500 525 209 316 2,237 1,254 983 10.52%
21 Total Fringe & Benefits 25,047,219 2,251,411 2,096,004 155,407 12,129,387 12,550,082 (420,695) 51.57%
22
23
24 Sick Leave 1,761,580 129,541 114,132 15,409 784,496 1,020,838 (236,342) 55.47%
25 Holiday 1,428,538 286,362 283,633 2,729 664,742 704,755 (40,013) 53.47%
26 Vacation 2,236,350 361,645 185,800 175,845 1,290,738 1,135,758 154,980 42.28%
27 Other Paid Absences 238,442 18,866 62,229 (43,363) 107,507 141,392 (33,885) 54.91%
28 Total Compensation Benefits 5,664,910 796,414 645,794 150,620 2,847,484 3,002,743 (155,259) 49.73%
29
30 Total 30,712,129 3,047,825 2,741,798 306,027 14,976,871 15,552,825 (575,954) 51.23%
31
32 Difference compared to Budget 306,027 (575,954)

Current Month Fiscal Year-to-date

Year to DateCurrent Month



page 4

Balance Sheet

December 2023, Fiscal Year 2024

Assets FY 24 FY 23 Liabilities, Reserves & Capital FY 24 FY 23

Current Assets Current Liabilites

Cash & Cash Items 2,921,786 1,585,834 Long Term Debt 0 0
Short Term Investments 5,815,771 8,836,051 Short Term Debt 0 0
Accounts Recievable 81,969,964 92,797,385 Trade Payables 6,160,839.05 6,586,554.79
Interest Recievable 0 43 Accrued Payroll Liabilities 4,558,134.00 4,140,348.32
Due From Grant 80,000 80,000 Estimated Workmans Compensation 5,138,783.20 4,872,808.75
Materials & Supplies 2,573,447 2,089,708 Accrued Tax Liabilities 0 41,151.77

------------------- ------------------- Unreedemed Tickets & Tokens 2,099,542.18 1,657,810.46
Total Current Assets 93,360,968 105,389,021 Reserves - Injury & Damages 1,396,100.00 1,516,300.00

Due To Operations 80,000.00 80,000.00
Other Assets Unearned Capital Contributions 71,539,410.20 85,452,500.92

Other Current Liabilities (Health Ins.) 4,475,748.73 3,585,310.03
Prepaid Insurance & Dues & WIP 1,263,885.99 1,365,739.64 ------------------- -------------------

------------------- ------------------- Total Current Liabilities 95,448,557 107,932,785
Total Other Assets 1,263,886 1,365,740

Fixed Assets
Equity

Land 3,773,249 3,187,624
Buildings 51,839,743 49,683,200 Retained Earnings 3,847,378 (3,840,154)
Coaches 140,117,391 129,428,769 Prior Year Retained Earning 78,763,717 78,980,037
Office Equipment 11,553,184 10,565,331 ------------------- -------------------
Other Equipment 21,247,069 24,010,625 Total Equity 82,611,096 75,139,883
Development Costs 181,457 455,200 ------------------- -------------------
Vehicle Exp - Operating 1,420,405 1,420,405 Total Liabilities & Equity 178,059,653 183,072,668
Other Equipment -Operating 185,103 189,242 ============ ============

------------------- -------------------
Total Fixed Assets 230,317,601 218,940,396

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Depr Land 813,708 767,569
Accumulated Depr Buildings 30,925,225 29,409,613
Accumulated Depr Coaches 87,298,516 82,574,510
Accumulated Depr Office Equipment 9,582,692 9,219,361
Accumulated Depr Other Equipment 16,986,942 19,346,389
Accumulated Depr Development Cost 54,485 151,991
Accumulated Depr Vehicle Exp - Opr 1,064,940 1,008,813
Accumulated Depr Other Equipment Op 156,294 144,242

------------------- -------------------
Total Depreciation 146,882,802 142,622,489

------------------- -------------------
Net Fixed Assets 83,434,799 76,317,908

------------------- -------------------
Total Assets 178,059,653 183,072,668

============ ============



Passenger Fares , $2,658,383

Paratransit 
Fares , 

$480,232

Special Fare Revenues (UofL, UPS and etc) , 
$841,402

Comp Specials , $0

Advertising Revenue , $325,000

Other Agency Revenues , $271,254

Total Recoveries-Insurance , 
$291,321

MTTF Contributions- Federated , 
$30,595,093

Local Government Funds - MTTF , 
$164,800

Federal Reimbursement Funds -
FTA , $13,670,122

State Government Funds , 
$698,342

Local Government Funds -
MTTF, Cap, $189,393

Federal Reimbursement Funds -
FTA, Cap, $7,997,187

State Goverenment Funds, Cap, 
$1,841,537

Other Agencies Revenue, Cap, $0

YTD Revenues FY 2024



Labor, $16,812,715

Fringes & Benefits, $14,976,871

Services, $2,941,308

Materials, $3,937,890

Utilities, $477,934

Casualty & Liability, $2,014,262

Purchased Transportation, 
$8,655,547

Interest Expense, $0

Other Expenses, $179,422

Development Cost & Loss on 
Disposal, $54,485

Depreciation Expenses, $6,126,252

Loss on Disposal of Assets, $0

YTD Expenses FY 2024



page 7

MassTransit Trust Fund (MTTF) Revenue Deposits

Deposit to Budget Difference FY 2024

FY 24 FY 24
Month Actual Deposits Budget Deposits Difference YTD Total Current Month YTD

July $5,772,993 $4,832,901 $940,092 $940,092 19.45%
August $4,556,894 $5,053,662 ($496,768) $443,324 -9.83% 4.48%
September $6,379,852 $5,225,029 $1,154,823 $1,598,147 22.10% 10.58%
October $5,188,606 $3,508,717 $1,679,889 $3,278,036 47.88% 17.60%
November $4,364,470 $4,473,572 ($109,102) $3,168,934 -2.44% 13.72%
December $7,192,670 $6,400,979 $791,691 $3,960,625 12.37% 13.43%
January $6,329,856 ($6,329,856) ($2,369,231) -100.00% -6.61%
February $4,578,304 ($4,578,304) ($6,947,535) -100.00% -17.20%
March $5,839,108 ($5,839,108) ($12,786,643) -100.00% -27.65%
April $11,523,802 ($11,523,802) ($24,310,445) -100.00% -42.08%
May $5,215,370 ($5,215,370) ($29,525,815) -100.00% -46.88%
June $6,660,085 ($6,660,085) ($36,185,900) -100.00% -51.96%

TOTAL $33,455,485 $69,641,385

MTTF Revenue Deposits - Actuals

TCARTER\BUD06\MTTF Financials December FY 2024 Draft (002).xlsx
2/15/2024



page 8

Year to Date Summary

December 2023, Fiscal Year 2024

Actual Compared to Budget YTD
Good In the Red

Total Revenues before Capital  are Over/Under by (pg. 2, line 18) $4,267,467

Total Expenses are Over/Under by (pg. 2, line 41) $4,267,467

MTTF Revenue Deposits are Over/Under by (pg. 7) $3,960,625

December has a favorable balance before Capital of $8,228,092 $4,267,467 $3,960,625

Actual Revenues over Expenses

Operating Revenues $4,867,592
Operating Expenses $49,995,949

Net Gain/(Loss) before MTTF ($45,128,356)

MTTF  Approved Contributions $30,595,093
Net Gain/(Loss) before Subsidies ($14,533,263)

Subsidies
ARP $12,008,355

5307 Federal Formula dollars to be used as (CEER) $1,661,766
MTTF Local Share $164,800

State Contributions $698,342

Total  Subsidies $14,533,263

Net Gain/(Loss) before Capital $0

2/15/2024
4:18 PM



page 9

TARC Actual YTD Actual YTD Remaining Budget YTD Actual FY 2024
Share FY 2023 FY 2024 Balance FY 2024  vs Budget FY 2024

ARP*** $48,293,376 $9,596,003 $12,008,355 $26,689,018 $28,695,496 ($16,687,141)

*** KY-2022-003 was approved/Executed 5/24/2022 end of FY 2022

Reimbursement Funds Only and a One Time Funding Source



DRAFT FY 2025 BUDGET SCHEDULE 

 

DECEMBER 14th INITIAL BUDGET PLANNING MEETING WITH FINANCE

DECEMBER 22nd EMAIL FROM MATT THAT DIRECTORS HAVE ACCESS TO FILES NO LATER THAN DATE STATED

JANUARY 15th KEY PLANS AND PROJECTS FOR FY25, DEPARTMENT ACCOMPLISHMENT IN FY24 TO MARKETING  - Alex
CAPITAL ITEMS TO GRANTS - Chris & Julia, Tonya
ANY TRAINING AND RELATED COST TO -  Nathan/Matt/Tonya
MEETING COST, DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS TO - Matt/Tonya 
IT NEEDS TO - Joe/Chris/Matt/Tonya

FEBRUARY 5th DEPARTMENT DRAFT BUDGETS DUE TO FINANCE - MUST HAVE AT LEAST MET WITH FINANCE ONCE

FEBRUARY 5th COMMUNICATIONS/MARKETING DEPT. DUE DATE FOR SUBMITTING TO FINANCE: Intro and any other budget items for the Book

FEBRUARY 9th MEET WITH MAYOR ABOUT TARC'S FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

FEBRUARY 26st - MARCH 2nd EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REVIEW OF DEPT BUDGETS (Rob,Tonya, Matt and Department Head) 

MARCH 11th BY OBJECT CLASS COMPLETED FOR EXECUTIVE REVIEW & FINANCE COMMITTEE

MARCH 20th TARC FINANCE COMMITTEE REVIEW OF BUDGET (FIRST LOOK)

MARCH 18th - 29th  TBD REVIEW WITH METRO COUNCIL AND THE MAYOR 

MARCH 27th TARC BOARD REVIEW OF BUDGET (FIRST LOOK)

APRIL 17th TARC FINANCE COMMITTEE REVIEWS AND GIVES SUPPORT OF FINAL BUDGET 

APRIL 24th TARC BOARD APPROVES BUDGET

APRIL TBD REVIEW WITH METRO COUNCIL AND THE MAYOR 

APRIL 26th MUST HAVE BUDGET TO METRO GOVERNMENT OMB

MAY  TBD MAYOR'S RECOMMENDED BUDGET (Around the 3rd Thursday)

JUNE TBD BUDGET HEARINGS WITH METRO COUNCIL BEG. OF JUNE

JUNE TBD FOLLOW UP BUDGET HEARINGS IF NECESSARY MID JUNE

JUNE TBD APPROVAL BY METRO GOVERNMENT END OF JUNE

BUDGET TIME LINE - 11/10/2023

2/15/2024 4:19 PM
H:\BOD\1. Finance, Audit, Risk Mgmt (monthly)\2024\2-February 2024\BUDGET SCHEDULE FY 25.xlsx

BUD TIME LINE 1 of 1



1

ANNUAL FINANCIAL CALENDAR 

• Budget process 
begins with 
Directors

• Sales Tax 
Withholding report

• 1099’s
• Fed financial grant 

reporting
• W2
• Old pension actuary

JUL

JAN

AUG

FEB

SEP

MAR

OCT

APR

NOV

MAY

DEC

JUN

• Development and 
review of budget 
draft

• INDOT funds
• Annual local Govt 

Financial survey
• WC simulated 

pension

• Old pension plan 
audit begins

• First budget look to 
TARC Board

• Second draft to TARC 
Board

• Board budget 
approval

• Fed financial grant 
reporting

• Ann public 
employment payroll 
survey

• Audit prep midterm 
review

• Submit budget to 
Metro Lou and 
Metro Council

• FTA Tri-annual 
review

• Special Purpose 
Govt Entity (SPGE) 
amendments

• Submit budget to 
Commonwealth

• Fed financial grant 
reporting

• SPGE budget
• Year end financial 

closure
• Budget entered and 

verified in ERP

• Annual audit
• NTD reporting data 

collection
• INDOT funding 

application
• Tri-annual Union 

contract

• NTD reporting 
begins

• WC renewal
• SPGE actuals
• Uniform, shoe and 

tool payroll

• NTD annual report 
submission

• Fed financial grant 
reporting

• Budget preliminary 
process begins

• Budget preliminary 
process continues 
(dept books and 
forms)

• Year end payroll 
forms



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Ozzy Gibson, Interim Executive Director 

Date: February 28, 2024 

Re: Resolution 2024 - 06 TRAPEZE ANNUAL SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND 
SUPPORT 

The purpose of this resolution is to provide updated authority for the annual software maintenance 
and support agreements that TARC maintains with Trapeze for a range of transit software 
products. TARC has utilized Trapeze software products since 1997 to support paratransit and 
fixed-route operations and have upgraded and expanded their use on several occasions. The 
offerings and agreements over the years have included software license agreements, software 
maintenance agreements and/or enhancements for the following system products: 

• Trapeze PASS Paratransit scheduling and reservations software 
• Trapeze COM Fixed Route/Paratransit Customer feedback and management software 
• Trapeze FX Fixed-Route operations management software 
• Trapeze OPS On-Board operations software and equipment 
• Trapeze INFO IVR Integrated Voice Response 
• Trapeze INFO Agent Client Info System 
• Trapeze INFO Real Time Route information 

As part of our Software Maintenance, TARC recently completed the process of upgrading our 
Trapeze Back Office systems to version 21 in September 2023.  This allows us to stay at a current, 
supportable version which also makes upgrading in the future easier. 

The expected cost for all Trapeze Software Maintenance this year, April 1, 2024 – March 31, 
2025, is not to exceed $443,686.00, and these funds are budgeted as part of the IT Annual 
Software Maintenance. 

This Resolution seeks approval for the Board of Directors to authorize the Interim Executive 
Director to enter into an agreement with Trapeze for a total not-to-exceed amount of $443,686.00.  

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you. 
  



 

RESOLUTION 2024-06 
TRAPEZE ANNUAL SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT  

A Resolution authorizing the Interim Executive Director to enter into an additional one-year 
agreement with Trapeze: 

WHEREAS, TARC seeks software maintenance and support on its existing Trapeze products; 
and,  

WHEREAS, TARC received quotes from Trapeze, which were deemed fair and reasonable; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River 
City that: 

The Interim Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into an additional one-year 
agreement with Trapeze based upon a proposed cost for a not-to-exceed amount of $443,686.00.
  

ADOPTED THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024 

 

_________________________________________ 
Ted Smith, Chair of the TARC Board of Directors 



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 
 
From: Ozzy Gibson, Interim Executive Director 
 
Date:  January 28, 2024 
 
Re: Resolution 2024-07 Purchase of Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel (ULSD #2) from Invitation 

to Bid 20241867 (ITB) 
 
On July 27, 2023, the TARC Board of Directors authorized the award of Ultra Low Sulfur 
Diesel (ULSD #2) fuel to James River Solution (JRS) through a competitive procurement 
and reverse auction at the per gallon price of $2.6199.  Subsequent to the execution of 
the contract and two months into the performance of such contract, JRS was not able to 
meet TARC’s quantity and delivery demands consistently. JRS was placed on a 30-60-
day improvement and remedy plan, and as of December 11, 2023, JRS failed to adhere 
to the expectations which resulted in the termination of the contract.   
 
On January 9, 2024, an emergency fuel procurement was initiated through a request for 
quotes with the intent to supply TARC with ULSD #2 until end of February until a new 
solicitation could be publicized and awarded. The request was sent to all bidders and 
advertised in Bonfire. A total of five (5) bidders responded and Valor Oil provided the 
lowest price, and in turn, won the bid during this period.  
 
On January 16, 2024, a new Invitation to Bid (ITB) 20241867 to purchase ULSD #2 for 
an 18-month supply was released with a bid end date of February 16, 2024. The public 
opening was held via zoom on February 16th and a total of six (6) vendors were deemed 
responsible and responsive. Valor Oil provided the lowest price for ULSD #2 fuel at a firm 
fixed-price per gallon price of $2.5934. 
 
At this time, the Board of Directors is respectfully requested to authorize the Interim 
Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Valor Oil for an 18-month supply of 
ULSD #2 at a firm fixed-price per gallon of $2.5934. 
 
Please call me at (502) 561-5100 if you have any questions.  Thank you. 
   
 



 

 

 

 

 

 RESOLUTION 2024-07  

Purchase of Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel (ULSD #2)  
 
A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Valor Oil 
for a term of 18-months to supply ULSD #2 fuel:  
 
WHEREAS, TARC conducted a lowest cost solicitation Invitation to Bid (ITB) 20241867 
on January 19, 2024 with a public opening of bid on February 16, 2024; and,  
 
WHEREAS, TARC received proposals from multiple vendors, with six (6) of the bids being 
deemed reasonable and responsive based on pricing analysis; and,  
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing such proposals, TARC seeks to select Valor Oil due to its bid 
being the lowest price to supply ULSD #2 at $2.5934 per gallon; and,  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority 
of River City that:  
 
The Interim Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with Valor 
Oil for an 18-month term based upon the firm fixed-price per gallon of $2.5934 for ULSD 
#2 fuel.  
 
 
ADOPTED THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Ted Smith, Chair of the Board of Directors 



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Ted Smith, Chair of TARC Board of Directors 

From: Ozzy Gibson, Interim Executive Director 

Date: February 28, 2024 

Re: Resolution 2024-08 COOLING COMPONENTS AND RELATED SUPPLIES (ITB 
20231859) 

In October 2023, the Procurement Department issued an invitation to bid (ITB) 20231859 for 
Cooling Components and Related Supplies. The solicitation was advertised in TARC’s Bonfire 
online and Transit Talent. Bids were received from two (2) qualified and experienced vendors and 
both were deemed responsive.   

The Procurement Department performed an independent cost estimate prior to receiving bids and 
the data is based on the last three (3) years spend.  Historically our average annual spend for 
these types of supplies and materials are $82,180.  With previous yearly contracts, in the past we 
have not taken this to the Board for authorization and approval.  However, we are now opting to 
have two (2) or more years with respect to agreements for these supplies so we must ask the 
Board for authorization and approval to enter into an agreement due to the threshold of Board 
approval. 

Price increases of raw materials are apparent and inventory availability is volatile, so the 
Procurement Department has increased the anticipated spend to $82,802 beginning this year with 
an escalation of 10% year-after-year.  The Procurement Department will be performing a pricing 
analysis prior to the 2nd year’s expiration of the contract to ensure price is within the market range. 

The proposed pricing from both bidders was reviewed and compared against an Independent 
Cost Estimate (ICE) conducted by the Procurement Department, which found that the items were 
priced fair and reasonable both bidders.  It is our intent to award these line item parts jointly to 
two (2) vendors: 

 
• Muncie 
• Kirk’s 

At this time, we respectfully request the Board of Directors to authorize the Interim Executive 
Director to enter into an agreement with an initial term of two (2) years in the amount of $173,884 
with an option of three (3) one-year terms in the amount of $327,953 over those three additional 
years.  The five (5) year total for this agreement shall not exceed amount is $501,838. 

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you. 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 24-08 
COOLING COMPONENTS AND RELATED SUPPLIES 

A Resolution authorizing the Interim Executive Director to enter into an agreement for an Initial 
Term of two (2) years with an Option of three (3) additional one-year terms for cooling components 
and related supplies: 

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation, Invitation to Bid (ITB) 20231859 was issued on October 
18, 2023 for such supplies; and  

WHEREAS, TARC seeks a multi-vendor award to provide cooling components and related 
supplies; and 

WHEREAS, TARC received two proposals to its ITB, which TARC deemed responsive and 
responsible, and TARC believes a multi-vendor award to Muncie and Kirk’s is in its best interest; 
and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River 
City that: 

The Interim Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into agreement for an Initial Term of 
two (2) years with an Option of three (3) additional one-year terms with Muncie and Kirk’s for a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $501,838.  

ADOPTED THIS 28th DAY OF February 2024 

 

______________________________________ 

Ted Smith, Chair of the Board of Directors 



2/15/2024 PROJECTED PROCUREMENT  PLAN PRIORITY FOR FY 2024

JAN 2024 FEB 2024 MAR 2024 APR 2024 MAY 2024 JUN 2024

DIESEL FUEL
ROLLING STOCK - PURCHASE 

PARATRANSIT CUTAWAYS

ROLLING STOCK PRE & POST AUDIT 
AND PRODUCTION LINE INSPECTION 

SERVICES - RFP

FUEL ISLANDS REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES

BUS WASH UPDATE (REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE)

COOLING COMPONENTS WHEEL CHAIR LIFTS
FACILITY-WIDE WATER DISPENSING 

SYSTEM - RFP
EXTRA POLICE SERVICES - RFP

FACILTY-WIDE LIGHTING UPGRADE 
(REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE)

ELEVATOR REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES

TECHNOLOGY PROFESSIONAL 
CONSULTING SERVICES - RFP

PAINT BOOTH UPGRADE (REPAIR 
AND MAINTENANCE

JUL 2024 AUG 2024 SEP 2024 OCT 2024 NOV 2024 DEC 2024
MAINTENANCE GARAGE FLOOR 

REPAIRS
CARD ACCESS AND SECURITY 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - RFP
BENEFITS BROKER CONSULTING 

SERVICES - RFP
ELECTRIC BUS ELECTRIFICATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE
NEW ERP SYSTEM - RFP

PARATRANSIT OPERATIONS AND 
MANAGEMENT (O&M) SERVICES - 

RFP
ON-BOARD BUS VIDEO 

SURVEILLANCE CAMERA SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT, SUPPORT AND 

MAINTENANCE

GUARD SHACK RENOVATIONS (29TH 
STREET AND 11TH STREET)

COMPUTER HARDWARE DESK AND 
LAPTOPS AND PERIPHERALS

HEAVY-DUTY 40FT CLEAN DIESEL 
BUS - RFP

BUS SHELTER DESIGN, 
INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE - 

RFP

LEARNING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
- RFP

MS OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE 
LICENSING AND SUPPORT

GENFARE/FAREBOX REPAIR, 
SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE - 

SOLE SOURCE

BUS MOBILE LIFTS UPGRADE 
(REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE)

FACILTY-WIDE LIGHTING UPGRADE 
(REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE)

PERIMETER FENCING AND GATE 
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE


	February 21 Finance Committee Meeting Agenda
	January 2024 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes FINAL
	FINSUMMARY December 2023 FY 24
	Financials December FY 2024 Draft (002)
	S & R & E - Capital
	Labor & Fringes
	Balance_Sheet
	YTD Revenues graph
	YTD Expenses graph
	MTTF 
	YTD Balance
	Stimulus balances

	BUDGET SCHEDULE FY 25
	BUD TIME LINE

	Resolution 2024-06 Trapeze Maintenance
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Resolution 2024-07 Purchase of Diesel Fuel
	Resolution 2024-08 Cooling Components
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	PROCUREMENT PROJECT FY2024 - 2025
	NON-CAPITAL PROJECTS

	ADP8527.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15

	ADP396E.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	TARC Finance Cmte Highlights_02202024_Final_Peer Analysis.pdf
	Slide 1: Peer Analysis Summary
	Slide 2: TARC is not alone…
	Slide 8: State Funding
	Slide 9: State Funding Per Capita
	Slide 10: Increased Funding
	Slide 11: General Transit Funding Source Categories
	Slide 12: Peer Agency – Local Funding Type
	Slide 13: Peer Agency – Funding Comparison
	Slide 14: Peer Agency – Funding Comparison
	Slide 15: Peer Agency – FY 2024 Budget Revenue
	Slide 16: Peer Agency – Operating Expenses
	Slide 17: Peer Agency – Operating Expenses by Type
	Slide 18: Peer Agency – Service and Cost
	Slide 19: Peer Strategies – TARTA, Toledo
	Slide 20: Peer Strategies – WeGo, Nashville 
	Slide 21: Peer Strategies – IndyGo, Indianapolis 
	Slide 22: Peer Strategies – Go Metro, Cincinnati 
	Slide 23: Passing a Tax Vote: Bold Vision
	Slide 24: Financial Scenarios
	Slide 25: Key Question
	Slide 26: Key Question
	Slide 27: Key Question


